






























































TABLE OF CONTENTS 

1. ZBA Wetland Special Exception Application

2. Memo to Hudson ZBA dated Oct. 8, 2019

3. Memo to Hudson Planning Board dated Oct. 8, 2019.

4. Planning Board Notice of Recommendation

5. Memo to Town Engineer & Con. Comm. dated Oct. 8, 2019

6. Con. Comm. Notice-pending 10/21 meeting outcome

7. Conservation Commission Application

8. Pictures

9. Plans



1.







































2.



















3.



4.



5.



6.



7.















8.



















9.































 

Not Official until reviewed, approved and signed 
As Edited [BB, GD2, GD1, MD] 

 

1 

                            TOWN OF HUDSON 1 

               Zoning Board of Adjustment 2 

     Charlie Brackett, Chairman          Marilyn E. McGrath, Selectmen Liaison  3 

   12 School Street    · Hudson, New Hampshire 03051    · Tel: 603-886-6008    · Fax: 603-594-1142 4 
 5 

MEETING MINUTES – September 26, 2019 - edited 6 

 7 

The Hudson Zoning Board of Adjustment met on September 26, 8 

2019, in the Community Development Paul Buxton Meeting Room in the lower 9 

level of Hudson Town Hall at 7:00 PM. 10 

 11 

I. CALL TO ORDER 12 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 13 

 14 

Chairman Brackett called the meeting to order at 6:58 PM and invited everyone 15 

to stand for the Pledge of Allegiance.  Mr. Brackett noted the 11:00 PM curfew 16 

and with six (6) Cases before the Board the possibility exists that all may not be 17 

addressed and added that they will endeavor to hear them all. 18 

 19 

Selectman McGrath went to the podium and presented on behalf of the Board of 20 

Selectmen Certificates of Appreciation to Jim Pacocha for seventeen (17) years of 21 

volunteer service to the Town of Hudson, to Charles Brackett for eighteen (18) 22 

years of service and to Maryellen Davis for seventeen (17) years of volunteer 23 

service to the Town of Hudson.  Ms. McGrath also added her personal thanks to 24 

the entire Board. 25 

 26 

Vice Chair Dearborn read the Preamble into the record, identified as Attachment 27 

A of the Board’s Bylaws, that included the procedure and process for the 28 

meeting, that copies of the Agenda and Application for Rehearing are on the shelf 29 

by the door, the importance of the 30-day time period as well as housekeeping 30 

items regarding cell phones, smoking and talking.  Clerk Davis took the roll call. 31 

 32 

Members present were Charlie Brackett (Regular/Chair), Gary Daddario 33 

(Regular), Maryellen Davis (Regular/Clerk), Gary Dearborn (Regular/Vice Chair), 34 

Brian Etienne (Alternate) and Jim Pacocha (Regular).  Also present were Bruce 35 

Buttrick, Zoning Administrator, Louise Knee, Recorder and Marilyn McGrath, 36 

Selectmen Liaison.  For the record, all Regular Members voted unless 37 

recisedrecused.  Mr. Pacocha stated the he would recuse himself from the first 38 

Case. 39 

 40 

Ms. McGrath addressed the public and noted that she is the Selectman Liaison 41 

to the Zoning Board and that even though she may participate in the discussion, 42 

she does not vote. 43 



Hudson ZBA Meeting Minutes 09/26/2019   

Not Official until reviewed, approved and signed 

As Edited [BB, GD2, GD1, MD] 

2 

 44 

III. PUBLIC HEARINGS OF SCHEDULED APPLICATIONS BEFORE THE 45 

BOARD:   46 

 47 

1. Case 208-001 (deferred/continued from 7-25-19): Richard and Robin 48 

Sevigny, 161 Bush Hill Road, Hudson, NH requests an Appeal From An 49 

Administrative Decision of a Notice of Violation dated May 24, 2019 50 

citing violations of two provisions in the Hudson Zoning Ordinance: 51 

§334-15B (2) Parking prohibited and §334-13 Junkyards prohibited; 52 

outdoor storage.  [Map 208, Lot 001-000; Zoned General-One (G-1); 53 

HZO Article III, §334-15B(2) & §334-13]. 54 

 55 

Clerk Davis read the Case into the record.  Mr. Pacocha recused himself as he 56 

was not present at the July meeting.  Alternate Etienne appointed to sit and vote 57 

on the matter. 58 

 59 

Mr. Brackett noted that this Case was continued from the July 25th meeting, that 60 

the Board has received two (2) rounds of testimony, that a Site Walk was held on 61 

July 29th, that the deference to tonight’s meeting was at the request of the 62 

Applicant and that now the Case is before the Board for discussion. 63 

 64 

Ms. Davis noted that the only new evidence was receipt of the Warranty Deed. 65 

 66 

Mr. Dearborn noted that the Applicant (Richard Sevigny) and his attorney were 67 

present and asked if it was permissible to pose them questions.  It Chairman 68 

Brackett noted it was permissible. 69 

 70 

Mr. Dearborn asked Attorney Kent Barker of Winer & Bennett in Nashua, NH,  71 

if there has been any attempt to clean up the site over the summer.  Atty. Barker 72 

responded that there has not as there is an existing restraining order.  Mr. 73 

Dearborn asked whether the Jeep vehicle in the tote road was still there and 74 

Atty. Barker stated that it was and believes that it belongs to a family member.  75 

Mr. Brackett noted that the Jeep was registered but not plated/inspected, had 76 

flat tires and was not road worthy.  Atty. Barker referenced the Site Walk 77 

comment that a check for ownership by HPD (Hudson Police Department) could 78 

determine ownership and asked whether a check was conducted.  Ms. McGrath 79 

noted that Mr. Sevigny had left the meeting to take a cellphone call.  Atty. Barker 80 

stated that his family is out-of-State.  Mr. Brackett declared a five (5) minute 81 

recess at 7:11 PM.  Mr. Brackett called the meeting back to order at 7:12 PM.  82 

Atty. Barker stated that the Jeep is owned by his client’s brother. 83 

 84 

Mr. Brackett stated that the issue before the Board is the trailer and added that 85 

from the Site Walk other possible violations were noted such as used appliances 86 

strewed across the property and possibly over the property line.  Mr. Dearborn 87 

noted that the temporary garage on the site is in the side setback.  Mr. Brackett 88 

stated that according to Town Counsel the Board can consider other violations 89 



Hudson ZBA Meeting Minutes 09/26/2019   

Not Official until reviewed, approved and signed 

As Edited [BB, GD2, GD1, MD] 

3 

but that the Board should vote on them separately.  Mr. Buttrick noted that the 90 

definition of ZO (Zoning Ordinance) Article 334-13 is broad.  Mr. Brackett stated 91 

that the identification of ‘junk’ is difficult because one man’s “treasures” can be 92 

considered as “junk” to another man.  Mr. Daddario stated that his observations 93 

on the other side of the property fall under Article 334:13 along with the stuff 94 

observed along the tote road.  Mr. Buttrick read the ZO definition of “Junk” and 95 

“Junkyard” into the record.  Mr. Brackett stated that those items were observed 96 

at the Site Walk.  Ms. Davis concurred and added that she did not see anything 97 

that could be used. 98 

 99 

Mr. Brackett noted that the other violation cited was the Gross Vehicle Weight 100 

(GVW) of the trailer by the easement.  Considering the condition of the trailer, 101 

an accurate weight cannot be taken.  It resides by the driveway easement with 102 

its doors open and filled with material.  Ms. Davis noted that the previous owner, 103 

Mr. Dunn, attested that its GVW was greater the 13,000 and the Board has 104 

testimony from Scott Boisvert of BSP Trans, Inc. that this trailer model weighs 105 

13,750 pounds. 106 

 107 

Motion made by Mr. Dearborn and seconded by Ms. Davis to uphold the Zoning 108 

Administrator’s / Code Enforcement Officer’s 5/24/2019 Notice of Violation.  Mr. 109 

Dearborn spoke to his motion noting that the debris and junk clearly depicts 110 

what’s on the property, there has been no attempt to clean any ioff it up, that 111 

the trasiler is greater in GVW than what is allowed, that the trailer doors were 112 

left open, unprotected and filled with various material.  Ms. Davis concurred with 113 

Mr. Dearborn and stated that junk is not in the Spirit of the Ordinance and it is 114 

not fair to the abutters or the Town and that it is clearly, in her opinion, a 115 

violation.  Mr. Etienne noted the Warrantyee Deed and its statements terms 116 

regarding “any damage” subject to use and added that the trailer violates the 117 

intent of the Deed.  Ms. Davis noted that the Deed runs with the land.  Mr. 118 

Daddario agreed with the Zoning Administrator’s decision, that considering the 119 

un-inability to obtain an accurate weight of the tractor-trailer “trailer” due to its 120 

current condition, that it is best for the Board is just in accepting  to accept the 121 

trucking company for its weight, that there may be some leeway on the junkyard 122 

but the evidence witnessed at the Site Walk showed materials over the easement 123 

and property line.  Vote was 5:0.  Zoning Administrator’s decision upheld. 124 

 125 

Discussion ensued and Site Walk observations were shared regarding other 126 

potential violations.  Mr. Dearborn stated that from the view of 155 Bush Hill 127 

Road, the temporary garage appears to be well within the setback.  Motion made 128 

by Ms. Davis, seconded by Mr. Etienne and unanimously voted that based on 129 

the observation made from the Site Walk to instruct the Zoning Administrator / 130 

Code Enforcement Officer to go back to the property to re-inspect the entire 131 

property for other areas of junk and potential violations.  Motion carried 5:0. 132 

 133 

 134 



Hudson ZBA Meeting Minutes 09/26/2019   

Not Official until reviewed, approved and signed 

As Edited [BB, GD2, GD1, MD] 

4 

2. Case 191-135 (9-26-19): Adam Gidley, owner of Salem Manufactured 135 

Homes LLC, Salem, NH, requests a prior Variance amendment for 3 136 

Bay Street, Hudson, NH to correct clerical errors of a replacement 137 

manufactured home from 72 ft. x 16 ft. to 76 ft. x 16 ft. yielding a total 138 

square footage of 1,216 rather than 1,152 as previously stated on the 139 

Variance granted on 7/25/19.  This Variance request is also to address 140 

the proposed site built decks of 4 ft. x 6 ft. and 10 ft. x 12 ft. [Map 191, 141 

Lot 135-000; Zoned Business (B); HZO Article VIII, §334-29 Extension 142 

or enlargement of nonconforming uses]. 143 

 144 

Clerk Davis read the Case into the record.  Mr. Buttrick stated that there was a 145 

discrepancy between the plot plan and the Building Permit (BP).  The BP had the 146 

wrong dimensions.  The submitted plot plan showed the correct dimensions of 147 

seventy six feet by sixteen feet (76’x16’) for one thousand two hundred sixteen 148 

square feet (1,216 SF) and the front stoop and that also the rear deck and front 149 

and rear steps were not included and should have been because it was an 150 

expansion of a non-conformity.   The incorrect dimensions from the BP were 151 

carried to the Agenda and included in the motion made on 7/25/2019.  Mr. 152 

Brackett noted that the case was reviewed, discussed and approved with one 153 

condition at the 7/25/2019 meeting. 154 

 155 

Adam Gidley, owner of Salem Manufactured Homes LLC in Salem, NH, admitted 156 

his chagrin to having placinged the incorrect dimension of 16’x72’ instead of the 157 

correct dimensions of 16’x76’ and noted that the plot plan submitted with the 158 

application had the correct dimensions, including the two steps to the front and 159 

rear doors. 160 

 161 

Public testimony opened at 7:30 PM.  No one addressed the Board. 162 

 163 

Several Members stated that their decision was based on the plot plan, which 164 

included the steps.  Mr. Dearborn asked and received confirmation that the rear 165 

steps do not encroach the setback. 166 

 167 

Motion made by Ms. Davis and seconded by Mr. Dearborn to grant the correction 168 

of the dimensions as per the plot plan from 1,152 SF to 1,216 SF and noted that 169 

the condition applied to the 7/25/2019 decision remain intact (“that the existing 170 

damaged recreational trailer vehicle currently in the rear setback be removed 171 

from the site when the existing manufactured home is removed, or sooner”).  Ms. 172 

Davis stated that it is clearly a clerical error, that there are no setback violations 173 

and the spirit of the Ordinance is met.  Mr. Dearborn concurred.  Mr. Brackett 174 

stated that this motion amends the previous Notice of Decision (NOD), that this 175 

is not a stand-alone NOD as the same stipulation assigned to the 7/25/2019 176 

decision remains and added that the 30-day appeal period begins anew as of this 177 

meeting.  Vote was 5:0.  Dimensions corrected.  For the record, Alternate Etienne 178 

voted as Mr. Pacocha had stepped down and was not reinstated at the beginning 179 

of the Case.   180 



Hudson ZBA Meeting Minutes 09/26/2019   

Not Official until reviewed, approved and signed 

As Edited [BB, GD2, GD1, MD] 

5 

 181 

 182 

3. Case 198-038 (9-26-19): Victor A. Cote, 8 B St., Hudson, NH requests 183 

a Variance to allow an installed 12 ft. x 24 ft. above ground pool to 184 

remain, which encroaches ~ 6 ft. into the rear setback leaving ~ 9 ft. 185 

where 15 ft. is required. [Map 198, Lot 038-000; Zoned Town Residence 186 

(TR); HZO Article VII, §334-27 Table of Minimum Dimensional 187 

Requirements]. 188 

 189 

Clerk Davis read the Case into the record.  Mr. Buttrick stated that the matter 190 

was discovered when the applicant filed for an Electrical Permit (ELP) on a 191 

recently installed pool and the link to a Building Permit (BP) was not found as it 192 

had not been obtained.  Mr. Buttrick stated that based on the filing for a BP he 193 

performed a Zoning Determination and had to deny the BP on account of the 194 

setback encroachment intrusion from the installed pool. 195 

 196 

Victor Cote introduced himself as the Property Owner and referenced his 197 

Variance application and shared the following: a pool is a reasonable and 198 

extremely common use at a residential property; that the installed pool does not 199 

present any intrusion to the neighbors, that there is no direct line-of-sight of the 200 

pool to the neighbors or public, except from #9 A Street; locating the pool to the 201 

rear of the site is reasonable and allows property owner reasonable use of his 202 

property; the lot is small with the house placed in the center so that anywhere 203 

the pool would be located on the site would infringe onto into a setback.  Mr. 204 

Cote stated that he purchased the pool from Naamco, that it sat in a box on his 205 

lawn for approximately three (3) weeks before Naamco installed and then told 206 

him to obtain an electrical permit to complete its installation. 207 

 208 

Public testimony opened at 7:43 PM.  No one addressed the Board. 209 

 210 

Mr. Brackett asked for clarification on the time line.  Mr. Buttrick stated that 211 

when the electrical permit (ELP) was sought it was discovered that a 212 

corresponding Building Permit (BP) had not been obtained, an application for the 213 

BP was submitted and on 7/2/2019 additional information was requested, 214 

specifically a plot plan with dimensions of the pool’s placement on the lot, then 215 

based on the additional information, a Zoning Determination was made on 216 

7/29/2019 noting that the pool encroached the rear setback and a Variance 217 

would be needed.  Mr. Buttrick stated that the BP was denied because of the 218 

setback issue. 219 

 220 

Discussion ensued and included similar experiences with the pool company, the 221 

filing of complaints and concern for insurance coverage not covering damage to 222 

anything constructed (or installed, such as a pool) without a Building Permit / 223 

Pool Permit.  Mr. Brackett noted that this is the second Case this year regarding 224 

the installation of a pool, from the same Company, without a Building/Pool 225 



Hudson ZBA Meeting Minutes 09/26/2019   

Not Official until reviewed, approved and signed 

As Edited [BB, GD2, GD1, MD] 

6 

Permit.  Ms. McGrath expressed concern with the ability of the pool company to 226 

install a pool without obtaining a permit and just ‘walk away’. 227 

 228 

Mr. Dearborn asked whether Mr. Cote decided where to place the pool.  Mr. Cote 229 

stated that all he communicated to Naamco was that the pool was to be installed 230 

in his backyard, never identified a specific location, and, in fact, was not even 231 

advised when Naamco would arrive to install it, that he came home one day to 232 

find it installed. 233 

 234 

Ms. Davis referred to the Town Engineer’s comment/concern regarding 235 

discharge from the pool as there is no Town drainage on the road and the 236 

topography is relatively flat and is close to neighbors.  Mr. Cote stated that he 237 

already added crushed stone around the pool and constructed a two-foot (2’) 238 

stonewall to the left and a 4’ – 5’ stonewall to the right.  Ms. McGrath suggested 239 

Mr. Cote make an appointment with the Town Engineer to explain what has been 240 

done to see if it is enough to satisfy the concern.  Mr. Brackett added that the 241 

concern is real and shared that he experienced an unexpected loss of 20,000 242 

gallons from his 28,000-gallon pool last November.       243 

 244 

Mr. Etienne asked Mr. Cote if he carried insurance and Mr. Cote advised that he 245 

notified his Insurance Company and added the pool to his policy.  Mr. Daddario 246 

asked Mr. Cote if he filed a complaint.  Mr. Cote responded that he did file a 247 

complaint with Naamco and that they responded “read your contract”.  Mr. 248 

Brackett suggested to Mr. Cote to place it on their website.  Mr. Etienne asked 249 

Mr. Cote if he filed a complaint with the State of NH and highlight that the pool 250 

was installed without the necessary permit.  Mr. Cote stated that he did not file 251 

a complaint with the State. 252 

 253 

Mr. Daddario noted that it came to attention because the Electrical Permit had 254 

no corresponding Building Permit and asked about the electrical status.  Mr. 255 

Cote stated that the electrical work has been done, that the pool is completely 256 

installed. 257 

 258 

Mr. Daddario made a motion to approve the variance into the rear setback with 259 

the condition that both the Building (Pool) Permit and Electrical Permit be 260 

obtained and inspected.  Ms. Davis stated that there should also be a condition 261 

to require the applicant to confer with the Town Engineer regarding the drainage 262 

system for recommendations and implementation.  Mr. Daddario agreed to add 263 

the condition to his motion,  Ms. Davis seconded the motion,  264 

 265 

Prior to voting, Mr. Brackett directed review the criteria for the granting of a 266 

Variance: 267 

(1) not contrary to public interest 268 

 in rear setback 269 

 least intrusive 270 



Hudson ZBA Meeting Minutes 09/26/2019   

Not Official until reviewed, approved and signed 

As Edited [BB, GD2, GD1, MD] 

7 

 no injury 271 

 no abutter testimony 272 

(2) spirit of Ordinance observed 273 

 does not alter character of the neighborhood 274 

 cannot be seen from the road 275 

 fence surrounding property 276 

(3) substantial justice done to property owner 277 

 already installed 278 

 removal provides no benefit 279 

(4) surrounding property values not diminished 280 

 no impact 281 

 any improvement is good 282 

(5) hardship[ 283 

 small lot 284 

 cannot be relocated to avoid setbacks - any placement on property 285 

would infringe a setback as house is placed in center of lot 286 

 back deck previously built – with proper Building Permit  287 

 applicant voluntarily sought Electrical Permit 288 

 ZBA not being held hostage, doing the right thing is a good thing 289 

 290 

Recap of motion: To grant the variance into the rear setback with the conditions 291 

that both the Building (Pool) Permit and Electrical Permit be obtained and that 292 

the applicant confer with the Town Engineer regarding the drainage system for 293 

recommendations and implementation.   It was noted that the Town’s Engineer 294 

submit any recommendation in writing to be included in the Case file and be 295 

included in the motion.  Mr. Buttrick was asked to coordinate. 296 

 297 

Vote was unanimous at 5:0.  Variance granted.  The 30-day appeal period was 298 

noted.  299 

 300 

For the record, Alternate Etienne voted as Mr. Pacocha had not been reinstated 301 

at the beginning of the Case.  Mr. Pacocha reinstated for the remainder of the 302 

meeting. 303 

 304 

 305 

4. Case 222-039 (9-26-19): Margaret McQueeney, 3 Colson Rd., Hudson, 306 

NH requests a Variance to allow a second separate driveway for an 307 

existing Accessory Dwelling Unit. [Map 222, Lot 039-000; Zoned 308 

Residence-Two (R-2); HZO Article XIIIA Accessory Dwelling Units, §334-309 

73.3G, Provisions].  310 

 311 

Clerk Davis read the Case into the record.  Mr. Buttrick referenced his Staff 312 

Report dated 9/26/2019, noted that the ZBA approved the ALU *Accessory 313 

Living Unit on 1/27/2000 and that on 1/28/2001 the Planning Board (PB) 314 

granted a waiver for a temporary second (2nd) driveway to expire in four (4) years 315 



Hudson ZBA Meeting Minutes 09/26/2019   

Not Official until reviewed, approved and signed 

As Edited [BB, GD2, GD1, MD] 

8 

(1/3/2006) and PB granted an extension of the second driveway untilo 316 

2/10/2010.  Mr. Buttrick also noted that a Home Occupation Special Exception 317 

was granted in 2010 for child care. 318 

 319 

Ms. McGrath stated that her recollection was that the ALU NOD (Notice of 320 

Decision) was to specify that if there was a new owner, that the new owner must 321 

get ZBA approval.  Mr. Buttrick stated that he was unaware and had not found 322 

any supporting paper trail of a condition requiring the ALU to be re-registered 323 

with new owner.   324 

 325 

Margaret McQueeney of 3A Colson Rd. introduced herself as residing in the ALU 326 

with her husband Mike McQueeney, stated that her daughter and son-in law 327 

(Meridith and Stephen Molloy) bought the property in December 2018 because 328 

it had the ALU, that the site has two (2) driveways and that the one for the ALU 329 

is dirt with ruts, referenced pictures of it applied attached to their application, 330 

noted that there are other properties in the neighborhood that have two (2) 331 

driveways, and that their desire is to pave the driveway to improve maintenance 332 

and their safety.  Ms. McQueeney stated that what Ms. McGrath just shared was 333 

news to them, that the house was purchased as a single-family home with an 334 

ADU and with two driveways. 335 

 336 

Ms. McQueeney reviewed their application and addressed the criteria for the 337 

granting of a variance.  The information shared included: 338 
 339 

1. not contrary to public interest  340 

 the ADU is located in the R-2 Zone 341 

 R2 Zone allows duplexes 342 

 The are several homes in the neighborhood with more than one 343 

driveway or curb cut and cited the following three (3) examples: 344 

home across the street is a duplex with two driveways, another has 345 

a circular driveway with two curb cuts and an indirect abutter (16 346 

Wason Street) has an ADU with two driveways 347 

 The second driveway existed and when house was purchased 348 

2. spirit of Ordinance observed 349 

 the second driveway provides those living in the ADU easier and 350 

direct and safer access to their living quarters 351 

 the main driveway only allows access to the main home 352 

 there is approximately 80 feet from the main driveway to the ADU 353 

 the ADU currently has an unpaved driveway which is icy, slushy 354 

and dangerous in the winter months 355 

 there is no direct access to the ADU for emergency personnel without 356 

the second driveway 357 

 the occupants of the ADU are elderly 358 

3. substantial justice done 359 



Hudson ZBA Meeting Minutes 09/26/2019   

Not Official until reviewed, approved and signed 

As Edited [BB, GD2, GD1, MD] 

9 

 the second driveway provides safety to the ADU residents for direct 360 

access and paving it eases in maintaining it, especially in winter, 361 

would allow safer access to the ADU 362 

 and would allow safer access for emergency personnel too 363 

4. will not diminish surrounding property values 364 

 the current dirt (secondary) driveway is an eye-sore 365 

 paving it would improve the site as well as the neighborhood 366 

5. hardship 367 

 literal enforcement results in an unnecessary hardship because the 368 

driveway to this home does not extend to the ADU – it is 80’ away 369 

from the ADU 370 

 80’ is too far to walk for some elderly people 371 

 it is also unreasonable to expect emergency personnel to access the 372 

ADU from the main home 373 

 emergency access through the main home will cause trauma and 374 

stress to children living in the main home 375 

 existing main driveway cannot extend to ADU because the leach field 376 

is in the front yard and the well is to the rear and the topography to 377 

the rear is not suitable for access 378 

 by paving the existing second driveway next to the ADU will provide 379 

necessary safety as it could be plowed and treated in winter and 380 

eliminate the ruts and icing and safety threats now posed by the dirt 381 

driveway 382 

 paving the driveway will help prevent falls and help allow the 383 

residents to keep their independence      384 

 385 

Public testimony opened at 8:29 PM.  No one from the public addressed the 386 

Board.  Mike McQueeney stated that it is hard in the wintertime dealing with the 387 

ruts, snow and ice, that he and his wife are elderly and their safety is a concern 388 

and why they want it paved, and, added that emergency access would also 389 

benefit from a paved driveway.  Public testimony closed at 8:30 PM. 390 

 391 

Mr. Buttrick referenced the Town Engineer and the Town Planner responses in 392 

the Supplemental Packet.  Town Engineer noted that a driveway permit would 393 

need to be pulled and that a turn-around be added so that there would be no 394 

backing into the road.  The Town Planner noted that two neighbors across the 395 

street both have two driveways, that the pre-existing “temporary” driveway serves 396 

just the ADU and that complying with a single driveway would likely require 397 

paving a substantial amount of the front lawn or backyard. 398 

 399 

Ms. Davis noted that two (2) driveways are allowed for duplexes but the 400 

Ordinance clearly specifies a single driveway to serve both the main home and 401 

the ADU and that the character of the single-family home be maintained.     402 

 403 



Hudson ZBA Meeting Minutes 09/26/2019   

Not Official until reviewed, approved and signed 

As Edited [BB, GD2, GD1, MD] 

10 

Discussion ensued.  Ms. McGrath stated that the ALU was approved and should 404 

have common access to the house and if not, the ADU should be abandoned and 405 

a duplex established.  Ms. McQueeney noted that the house was financed as a 406 

single-family home and an ADU should meet safety requirements.  Mr. Brackett 407 

noted that the financing of the house did not seem to be hindered by the second 408 

driveway even though the second driveway temporary permit has expired and is 409 

now in violation.  Ms. Davis noted that the lot does not qualify for a duplex as it 410 

does not meet lot size.  Mr. Brackett expressed concern that the Planning Board 411 

authorized a temporary driveway as it usurps Zoning Ordinance requirement. 412 

 413 

With regard to the Town Planner’s comment, Mr. Daddario stated that it would 414 

seem more off and out-of-character with the neighborhood to have the front yard 415 

substantially paved to accommodate use of the main driveway.  Mr. McQueeney 416 

stated that the septic system is located in the front yard and cannot be paved 417 

over and added that the well is located in the back of the house and that there 418 

is a hill in the back of the house that prevents a rear access to the ADU from the 419 

main driveway.  Mr. Dearborn noted that the ZBA recently did not approve a 420 

second driveway for another ADU in Town.  Ms. Davis noted that hardship is to 421 

be based on the “land”.  Mr. Brackett asked if the possibility exists to eliminate 422 

both driveways and create one that will service both the main home and the 423 

ADU. 424 

 425 

Other alternatives were explored.  Ms. Davis stated that she is inclined to 426 

disapprove the paving of the second temporary dirt driveway based on the literal 427 

strict enforcement of the Zoning Ordinance but could consider an alternative to 428 

paving that would continue to serve the ADU and not look like a second driveway.  429 

The thought of an open grid paved system was mentioned as it could be plowed 430 

in wintertime and mowed in summer and allow safer passage for the residents 431 

without obviously being a second paved driveway. 432 

 433 

Mr. McQueeney expressed confusion as there is a driveway now that is dirt and 434 

ruddy and a safety hazard and all they seek is to pave it.  The Board explained 435 

that the existence of the dirt driveway was to be temporary and the time period 436 

for its existence has expired and it is technically in violation.  It was also noted 437 

that should the Board vote tonight for paving the second illegal driveway at this 438 

meeting, an appeal would have to provide either new evidence or an alternate 439 

variation and the temporary driveway could be subject to Code Enforcement 440 

action.  Ms. McQueeney asked the Board to defer making a motion until they 441 

have had the opportunity to check out other options that would be less intrusive 442 

than full pavement. 443 

 444 

Motion made by Ms. Davis and seconded by Mr. Daddario to accept the verbal 445 

request of the Applicant and defer the Hearing until the next meeting, October 446 

24, 2019.  Vote was 5:0.  Motion passed.  Case continued to October meeting, 447 

 448 



Hudson ZBA Meeting Minutes 09/26/2019   

Not Official until reviewed, approved and signed 

As Edited [BB, GD2, GD1, MD] 

11 

Board recessed for ten minutes at 8:59 PM.  Meeting called back to order at 9:10 449 

PM. 450 

 451 

5. Case 174-079-005 (9-26-19): Don Dumont, owner of Posey 452 

Investments, LLC., 195R Central St., Hudson, NH requests an 453 

Equitable Waiver of Dimensional Requirement for 7 Lee Way, Hudson, 454 

NH to allow a newly built foundation to encroach 6 inches into the side 455 

yard setback leaving 14.5 ft. where 15 ft. is required.  [Map 174, Lot 456 

079-005; Zoned Town Residence (TR); HZO Article VII, §334-27 Table 457 

of Minimum Dimensional Requirements]. 458 

 459 

Clerk Davis read the Case into the record.  Mr. Buttrick noted that this is a 460 

newly created subdivision and the lot is under construction and stated that 461 

the discrepancy (violation of setback) was discovered when the applicant 462 

submitted the required Certified Plot Plan (plan dated 9/5/2019 prepared by 463 

Boudreau Land Surveying, PLLC) after the foundation was poured in order to 464 

obtain a Framing Permit.  The rear corner was poured six inches (6”) into the 465 

side setback.  An Equitable Waiver is being sought as the violation was not 466 

intended and was poured  and the proximity of the poured foundation was in 467 

error. 468 

 469 

Don Dumont, owner of Posey Investments, LLC, addressed the Board, 470 

concurred with Mr. Buttrick’s statements, noted that the excavator missed 471 

the footing for the left rear corner and it ended up being poured six inches 472 

(6”) into the setback.  Mr. Dumont stated that it was an honest error and not 473 

discovered until after the foundation was poured and the surveyed as-built 474 

plan prepared. 475 

 476 

Public testimony opened at 9:14 PM.  Dillon Dumont of Posey Investments 477 

stated that the lot is a tight lot, that it was mapped out honoring the setbacks 478 

and the excavation pourer missed the mark only at the rear corner by six 479 

inches (6”).  It was an honest mistake.  Being no one else to address the Board, 480 

public testimony closed at 9:15 PM 481 

 482 

Ms. McGrath stated that there have been several issues and concerns 483 

regarding this development/subdivision.  Mr. Dillon did not disagree and 484 

added that the Town Engineer has had no issues with Posey and added that 485 

they (Posey & Town Engineer) have a good working relationship. 486 

 487 

Ms. Davis asked why the house could not be brought closer to the road and 488 

Mr. Dillon responded that it could not on account of the grade required for a 489 

driveway and the front setback requirement. 490 

 491 

Ms. McGrath asked how/why this is an Equitable Waiver request and Ms. 492 

Davis asked why it was not a Variance request.  Mr. Buttrick stated that an 493 

after-the-fact Variance request usually is a result of hot not having pulled 494 



Hudson ZBA Meeting Minutes 09/26/2019   

Not Official until reviewed, approved and signed 

As Edited [BB, GD2, GD1, MD] 

12 

required permits and this had the Building Permit pulled along with the 495 

Foundation Sub-permit and was discovered when the required As-built Plan 496 

was submitted, which was a requirement before the Framing Sub-permit 497 

could be pulled.  Mr. Buttrick stated that according to RSA 674:33-a there 498 

are two prongs to consider for an Equitable Waiver, the first one regarding 499 

greater than a decade to be noticed and or the second resulting from an 500 

innocent mistake and a high correction cost.  Mr. Buttrick pointed out that 501 

the discovery of the mistake was because the Applicant was complying with 502 

the process and provided the As-built Plan.  Mr. Etienne asked whether the 503 

Board could expect another “mistake” from this development.  Mr. Daddario 504 

stated that six inches (6”) is minimal enough to be considered a mistake. 505 

 506 

Motion made by Mr. Daddario and seconded by Mr. Dearborn to grant the 507 

Equitable Waiver for the foundation that was poured six inches (6”) into the 508 

rear setback for a length of approximately one foot (1’).  Mr. Daddario spoke 509 

to his motion stating that it was an innocent mistake, the foundation was 510 

staked to be in compliance with the setback, that the excavation missed the 511 

mark by six inches (6”), that the foundation has been poured, that it was 512 

discovered too late to bring into compliance and that it does not pose a public 513 

or private nuisance.  Mr. Dearborn concurred.  Ms. Davis asked and received 514 

confirmation from Mr. Buttrick that the foundation permit was pulled and 515 

because the foundation was not poured per plan the the foundation sub-516 

permit cannot be signed-off and the framing sub-permit cannot be pulled 517 

until the Board acts on the Equitable Waiver.  Mr. Brackett stated that there 518 

was an engineered plan and it was approved by the Town Engineer.  Mr. 519 

Daddario stated that ten feet (10’) could not be considered a mistake in his 520 

opinion, but six inches (6”) can.  Mr. Dearborn added that the 6” 521 

encroachment is for only a length of one foot (1’).  Vote was 5:0.  Equitable 522 

Waiver granted.  The 30-day appeal period was noted.    523 

 524 

6. Case 165-036 (9-26-19): John Colby, 11 Kenyon St., Hudson, NH 525 

requests a Variance to build an Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU), porch 526 

and sunroom onto an existing nonconforming house/structure. The 527 

new porch addition encroaches 17.7 ft. leaving 12.3 ft. of front yard 528 

setback. The new ADU & sunroom encroaches 8.1 ft. leaving 21.9 ft. of 529 

front yard setback where 30 ft. is required. [Map 165, Lot 036-000; 530 

Zoned Town Residence (TR); HZO Article VIII, §334-31 Alteration and 531 

expansion of nonconforming structures and HZO Article VII, §334-27 532 

Table of Minimum Dimensional Requirements]. 533 

 534 

Clerk Davis read the Case into the record.  Mr. Buttrick referenced his Zoning 535 

Determination dated 9/10/2019 and his Staff Report signed 9/26/2019, noted 536 

that the lot is conforming but the existing house, built in the early 1900s, is non-537 

conforming being in the front setback approximately 17.7’ leaving approximately 538 

12.3’ of the required 30’ front setback.   Mr. Buttrick stated that a Variance is 539 

needed to expand a non-conforming structure with the extension of the front 540 



Hudson ZBA Meeting Minutes 09/26/2019   

Not Official until reviewed, approved and signed 

As Edited [BB, GD2, GD1, MD] 

13 

porch, the addition of a sunroom few feet into the front setback and an ADU unit 541 

approximately 8’ into the front setback  542 

 543 

John Colby introduced himself and referenced his application.  The information 544 

shared included: 545 

 546 
 547 

1. not contrary to public interest  548 

 proposed addition will not negatively impact the character of the 549 

neighborhood because with the layout of the yard and the home’s 550 

proximity to the road there will be enough open space between it 551 

and other properties 552 

2. spirit of Ordinance observed 553 

 the proposed addition will be further back (7’) than the existing 554 

porch and more than 30’ from the road 555 

 the addition will provide a higher level of safety for the children than 556 

any other place on the property as it will create a more private area 557 

(backyard) 558 

 the addition as proposed will also tie in aesthetically to give the 559 

appearance of one house instead of two separate dwellings 560 

3. substantial justice done 561 

 the way the home is set on the property now does not afford much 562 

privacy.  The proposed ADU will help define the backyard and grant 563 

some privacy. 564 

 The existing front porch will be extended and tie into the proposed 565 

additions to create one long farmer’s porch.  This will open up the 566 

front of the home and give it more curb appeal than exists now. 567 

4. will not diminish surrounding property values 568 

 the home is the least updated and least visually appeal in the 569 

neighborhood – it hadn’t been kept up for many years.  The addition 570 

will increase the property value and enhance the character of the 571 

neighborhood. 572 

5. hardship 573 

 the original house was built in 1900, before Zoning, and does not 574 

satisfy the current 30’ front setback requirement 575 

 other placement options were considered and discarded as they 576 

would negatively impact the set-up and practical usage of the home, 577 

would not promote the desired privacy, nor the safety for the 578 

children nor eye appeal 579 

 the house’s placement is a pre-existing condition and it would be an 580 

unnecessary hardship to insist that the addition not be allowed 581 

 the proposed addition will be 7’ further back from the existing home 582 

 the proposed addition maintains the character of the neighborhood 583 

and is the best use of the property 584 

 585 



Hudson ZBA Meeting Minutes 09/26/2019   

Not Official until reviewed, approved and signed 

As Edited [BB, GD2, GD1, MD] 

14 

Mr. Colby referenced the surveyed “plot” plan prepared by Jeffrey Land Survey, 586 

LLC dated 8/13/19 that shows the existing house, the proposed wrap-around 587 

porch, the sunroom, the ADU and the proposed deck.  Mr. Colby noted that the 588 

barn at the end of the driveway was built at the same time as the house and is 589 

in the rear setback.  Mr. Colby stated that there is a 3½- acre field to the rear of 590 

his site and added that the 24’ x 80’ barn can accommodate three (3) cars. 591 

 592 

Mr. Colby next referenced the picture of the existing house and noted that the 593 

far rear window is his mother’s bedroom who has loved lived with them for 594 

nineteen (19) years and is handicap.  The center double windows are his dining 595 

room.  The ADU is for his in-laws who live in Scotland and are retiring to come 596 

live with them. 597 

 598 

Ms. McGrath questioned the barn and the shed in the rear setback.  Mr. Buttrick 599 

stated that the property owner could pursue an Equitable Waiver.  Ms. McGrath 600 

noted that the point she has been making is that the Equitable Waiver should 601 

have been presented with this application to avoid having the property owner 602 

return to the Board at an additional cost. 603 

 604 

Mr. Colby stated that he sent a letter to his neighbors about his proposal to 605 

construct a wrap-around porch, sunroom, ADU and deck and received their 606 

okay.  Mr. Colby read his letter into the record and submitted copies of their 607 

signed consent. 608 

 609 

It was noted that there was no one sitting in the audience. 610 

 611 

Mr. Pacocha asked whether the existing porch needs an Equitable Waiver before 612 

granting a variance to extend it.  Mr. Buttrick stated that the porch is an existing 613 

non-conformity built in 1900, pre-Zoning, and a variance granted to extend it 614 

acknowledges its existence and acceptance to/by the Town. 615 

 616 

Mr. Dearborn stated that there is no outlet on Kenyon Street and there are many 617 

houses set in the front setback.  Mr. Bracket agreed that the number and speed 618 

of cars is different than other Cases, this one being far lower.  Ms. Davis agreed 619 

that Kenyon Street is not a busy road. 620 

 621 

Mr. Brackett stated that he dislikes seeing an expansion in the setback, can 622 

agree with the farmer’s porch as it will not intrude further into the setback and 623 

questioned if the sunroom and ADU could be reconfigured out of the setback.  624 

Mr. Colby stated that they have all the plans done already and asked if a new 625 

plot plan would be needed.  Mr. Bracket stated that it would. 626 

 627 

Mr. Daddario stated that what is different for this Case is that Mr. Colby has a 628 

lack of any opposition and even submitted letters of consent from his abutters.  629 

Mr. Dearborn stated that we all have our own opinion, but the Case tonight is 630 

based on a set of plans and that is what the Board is to vote upon.    631 



Hudson ZBA Meeting Minutes 09/26/2019   

Not Official until reviewed, approved and signed 

As Edited [BB, GD2, GD1, MD] 

15 

 632 

Ms. Davis stated that there is a size limit of 750 SF maximum for an ADU and 633 

the plan presented shows 749 SF.  Ms. Davis also noted that another ADU 634 

criteria is that there can be no more than two unrelated people and Mr. Colby 635 

confirmed that his in-laws have been married for fifty (50) years. 636 

 637 

Motion made by Mr. Dearborn and seconded by Ms. Davis to grant the Variance 638 

as per plan submitted – plan prepared by Jeffrey Land Survey LLC dated 639 

8/13/2019.  Before calling for a vote, Mr. Brackett asked the Board to address 640 

each criteria. 641 

 642 

Variance criteria: 643 
 644 

1. not contrary to public interest  645 

 Mr. Dearborn: not contrary to public interest, letters of consent from 646 

abutters submitted 647 

 Ms. Davis: not altering neighborhood, aesthetically tying it in  648 

 Mr. Pacocha: concurred 649 

2. spirit of Ordinance observed 650 

 Mr. Dearborn and Ms. Davis: does not alter the neighborhood 651 

3. substantial justice done 652 

 Mr. Pacocha: no harm to be found 653 

 Ms. Davis and Mr. Dearborn: justice for applicant and no gain to the 654 

public if there were to be denied 655 

4. will not diminish surrounding property values 656 

 Ms. Davis and Mr. Dearborn: increase in property values for 657 

applicant and neighborhood 658 

5. hardship 659 

 Mr. Pacocha: house already exists on the lot, existed before Zoning, 660 

cannot expect to move the house 661 

 Mr. Dearborn: house built in 1900 662 

 Ms. Davis: there are special conditions 663 

 664 

 Vote was 4:1.  Mr. Brackett opposed.  Variance granted.  The 30-day appeal 665 

period was noted.  In response to Mr. Colby’s question, Mr. Brackett stated that 666 

any ‘aggrieved’ person has the right to appeal and to proceed within the appeal 667 

period is at the applicant’s own risk. 668 

 669 

Ms. McGrath excused herself at 10:12 PM and left the meeting. 670 

 671 

 672 

 673 

 674 

IV. PUBLIC HEARING: 675 
 676 
3rd  Reading of proposed bylaws amendments.\ 677 



Hudson ZBA Meeting Minutes 09/26/2019   

Not Official until reviewed, approved and signed 

As Edited [BB, GD2, GD1, MD] 

16 

 678 

Public Hearing opened at 10:14 PM.  Mr. Buttrick provided a recap of the 679 

proposed Amendments that included: adding a Recorder position and 680 

description; changing description of Clerk duties; adding consequence for 681 

unexcused absences; changes to the Order of Business to include the Pledge of 682 

Allegiance, the Preamble (Attachment A) and the 11 PM curfew and the 30-day 683 

appeal period.  The word “preamble” was added to Attachment A. 684 

 685 

Motion made by Ms. Davis, seconded by Mr. Dearborn and unanimously voted 686 

(5:0) to adopt the changes proposed after having held three (3) Public Hearings. 687 

Bylaws amended. 688 

 689 

Public Hearing closed at 10:17 PM. 690 

 691 

V. REVIEW OF MINUTES: 692 
 693 

1. 08/22/19 Minutes 694 

 695 

Board reviewed the edited version and made no further changes.  Motion made 696 

by Mr. Dearborn, seconded by Mr. Pacocha and unanimously voted (5:0) to 697 

approve the 8/22/2019 Minutes as edited. 698 

 699 

VI. REQUEST FOR REHEARING: None 700 

 701 

No requests were presented for consideration; however, Mr. Buttrick mentioned 702 

that the Air B&B case at 8 Madison has appealed and filed for re-hearing and 703 

could appear on October’s Agenda. 704 

  705 

VII. OTHER: 706 
 707 
1. Update of Zoning Ordinance Amendments proposed to Planning Board 708 

as result from 8/29/19 ZBA workshop mtg.  709 
 710 
Mr. Buttrick stated that as a result of the last workshop, the following three (3) 711 

are ready for presentation to the Planning Board: (1) backyard farming / 712 

animals; (2) Day Care Special Exception to include outdoor activities; and (3) 713 

doggie day care / training. 714 

 715 

Mr. Brackett stated that the Planning Board is also preparing their own 716 

amendments and one that is being contemplated is removing the wetland 717 

buffer Special Exception from ZBA. 718 

 719 

2. Paper for Meeting Packets  720 
 721 
General consensus was to keep the paper.  The online availability is 722 

appreciated but paper is relied upon when actually reviewing each Case in 723 



Hudson ZBA Meeting Minutes 09/26/2019   

Not Official until reviewed, approved and signed 

As Edited [BB, GD2, GD1, MD] 

17 

preparation for a meeting.  Mr. Dearborn added his appreciation for the 724 

Decision Sheet being placed up front for each Case. 725 

 726 

3. Number of Cases per Agenda/Meeting 727 

 728 

Even though the Board managed six (6) Cases at this meeting, it was 729 

recognized that one was a continuation for Board deliberation only and one 730 

was deferred to the next meeting.  Varying opinions were expressed.  731 

Consensus reached to keep each Agenda for each meeting to a maximum of 732 

four (4) Cases. 733 

 734 

 735 

Motion made by Mr. Dearborn, seconded by Mr. Pacocha and unanimously 736 

voted to adjourn the meeting.  The 9/26/2019 ZBA meeting adjourned at 10:34 737 

PM.  738 

 739 

 740 

Respectfully submitted, 741 

Louise Knee, Recorder 742 






















	1-zba-agenda-102419
	2-Staff Report-59 Sullivan Rd-102419
	3-case-163-007_59-Sullivan-Rd-Home Occupation Special Exception-102419
	4-Staff Report-161-Lowell-Rd-WSE-102419
	5-case-209-001_161-lowell-rd-Wetland-Special-Exception-102419
	6-case-168-012-8-madison-dr-Request for Rehearing-102419
	7-zba-minutes-102419-edited
	8-Hudson-ZBA-ByLaws-Approved-9-26-19



